APOLOGIES

Peter Barellli (RMS) Ben Taber (RMS)

PRESENT

LSC Dave McCann (NSW Police)
Pat Peter (Local Member's Representative)

IN ATTENDANCE

Bill Harvey (Wagga Wagga City Council – Senior Traffic Officer)
Tim Cahill (Wagga Wagga City Council – Traffic Officer)
Janmaree Campbell (Wagga Wagga City Council – Minute Taker)

The meeting of the Traffic Committee commenced at 09:15 am.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF COUNTRY

I would like to Acknowledge the Traditional Custodians of this Land, on which this meeting takes place and to pay my respects to Elders past and present.

CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

CM-1 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES - MEETING HELD 14 JULY 2016

Recommendation

That the Minutes of the proceedings of the Traffic Committee Meeting held on 14 July 2016 be confirmed as a true and accurate record.

CARRIED

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No Declarations of Interest received.

REPORTS

RP-1 WAGGA WAGGA RAILWAY STATION INTERCHANGE UPGRADE PROJECT

Recommendation

That Traffic Committee note the content of the letter to Wagga Wagga City Council relating to the proposed upgrade of the Regional Interchange at Wagga Wagga Railway Station and the reply that was sent to the project manager in response to that letter.

CARRIED

RP-2 LAKE RUN AND RIDE EVENT

Recommendation

That Traffic Committee note that the following matter was distributed to members by email on 2 August 2016 with members responding in favour of the recommendations.

That Traffic Committee endorse road closures of East Lake Drive, Lake Albert Road, Lakeside Drive, Kooringal Road, Plumpton Road, in Lake Albert and Kooringal, between 9:30am and 1pm on Sunday 11 September 2016, to permit the conduct of the Wagga Lake Run and Ride, subject to the following conditions:

- a A certified Traffic Control Plan for the event to be implemented, monitored and decommissioned by an accredited person/s.
- b Organisers and event participants will obey all reasonable directions that are given by Police.
- c Organisers and event participants will obey all reasonable directions that are given by Wagga Wagga City Council Staff.
- d Organisers, marshals and participants are to minimise the effect of the event on the non-event community as far as possible, throughout the event.
- e All participants are to be briefed verbally, on the course and emergency arrangements, prior to the commencement of the event.
- f All participants are to obey any reasonable direction/s that is given by event organisers and event marshals throughout the course of the event.
- g All barricades that restrict access to roads are to be monitored by
- h The event organisers should actively discourage participants in the 'Ride' part of the event from racing with others and from riding recklessly or in a manner that causes danger to themselves or to

others by briefing the participants before the start of the event and by what other means are appropriate.

- i All barricade marshals are to be thoroughly briefed, both verbally and in writing, as to the requirements of their position and the powers that they are permitted to exercise before the commencement of the event.
- j A copy of a Certificate of Currency of a public liability insurance policy, that notes Wagga Wagga City Council and the NSW Roads and Maritime Services as interested parties, to the minimum value of \$20 million, to be produced to Wagga Wagga City Council not later than 2 September 2016.
- k Failure to comply with any and all of the above conditions will immediately void this approval.

CARRIED

RP-3 SPRING STREET FESTIVAL EVENT

Recommendation

That Traffic Committee note that the following matter was distributed to members by electronic means on 5 August 2016 with members replying in favour of the recommendation.

That Traffic Committee endorse the conduct of the SPRING STREET FESTIVAL, to be held in Baylis and Morrow Streets Wagga Wagga, between Morrow Street and the north side of Wollundry Lagoon Bridge, on Saturday 17 September 2016, subject to the following conditions:

- a A certified and approved Traffic Control plan that prevents ordinary traffic access to the area is to be implemented and maintained by appropriately authorised personnel prior to and throughout the event.
- b There is to be no vehicular movement in the nominated areas during the event.
- c Organisers and event participants obey all Police directions.
- d Organisers and event participants obey any reasonable direction that is made by a Wagga Wagga City Council Officer in respect of the management of the road network.
- e No event participant is to occupy a position on a road that is outside of the closed area.
- The organiser must produce a copy of a certificate of currency for a public liability insurance policy, to the minimum value of \$20 million, endorsing Wagga Wagga City Council and the NSW Roads and Maritime Services as interested parties in this event, to Wagga Wagga City Council not later than close of business on 12 September 2016

- g The Event Organiser is to notify emergency services and public transport providers of the road closure.
- h Failure to comply with any condition immediately voids approval for the event and normal traffic regulation and restriction will apply from that time.

CARRIED

RP-4 GEARS AND BEERS EVENT

Recommendation

That Traffic Committee members note that the following matter was distributed to members by electronic means on 9 August 2016 with members responding in favour of the event.

That Traffic Committee endorse road closures of Baylis Street and Fitzmaurice Street between 7:00am and 1:00pm on Sunday 2 October 2016, to permit the conduct of the Gears and Beers cycling event, subject to the following conditions:

- a A certified Traffic Control Plan for the event to be implemented, monitored and decommissioned by an accredited person/s.
- b Organisers and event participants will obey all reasonable directions that are given by Police.
- c Organisers and event participants will obey all reasonable directions that are given by Wagga Wagga City Council Staff.
- d Organisers and event participants will obey all reasonable directions that are given by Coolamon Shire Council Staff.
- e Organisers, marshals and participants are to take all possible actions to minimise the effect of the event on the non-event community, throughout the event.
- f All participants are to obey any reasonable direction/s that is given by event organisers and event marshals throughout the course of the event.
- g All participants are to be briefed verbally, on the course and emergency arrangements, prior to the commencement of the event.
- h All escorting vehicle drivers, event marshals and event participants will at all times obey the provisions of New South Wales Road Transport Legislation.
- i The event organisers should actively discourage participants in the event from racing with others and from riding recklessly or in a manner that causes danger to themselves or to others by briefing the participants before the start of the event and by any other means that are appropriate.
- i All marshals are to be thoroughly briefed, both verbally and in writing, as

to the requirements of their position and the powers that they are permitted to exercise before the commencement of the event.

- k Each ride is to be accompanied by a lead vehicle, a following vehicle, a sag-wagon and an uplift vehicle.
- I Each of the lead vehicles, following vehicles and sag-wagons is to be fitted with a flashing amber lamp that operates at all time while the ride is on the open road network.
- m The lead vehicle and the following vehicle are to clearly display signs on the high point of the vehicle that are yellow background with black text that is at least 120mm in height with the words 'CAUTION / CYCLE EVENT IN PROGRESS'.
- n All event marshals and vehicle drivers and other vehicle assistants must wear reflective vests that meet the requirements of Australian Standard 4602:1999.
- o The event organiser will appoint a Ride Captain for each ride group.
- p The event organiser will appoint a First-Aid operator who will accompany each ride group.
- q Ride groups will, as far as possible, stay together.
- r Any participant who is unable to keep up with the group is to be picked up by the sag-wagon and uplift vehicles.
- s Any event participants who are unable to keep up with the ride group but refuses to be picked up by the sag-wagon and uplift vehicle will be deemed to no longer be taking part in the event.
- A copy of a Certificate of Currency of a public liability insurance policy, that notes Wagga Wagga City Council, Coolamon Shire Council, Junee Shire Council and the NSW Roads and Maritime Services as interested parties, to the minimum value of \$20 million, to be produced to Wagga Wagga City Council not later than 28 September 2016.
- u Failure to comply with any and all of the above conditions will immediately void this approval.

CARRIED

RP-5 LADYSMITH DUATHLON EVENT

Recommendation

That Traffic Committee note that the following matter was distributed to members by email on 31 August 2016 with members responding in favour of the event.

That Traffic Committee endorses the conduct of a bicycle race as part of a duathlon event on a course near Ladysmith, as per attached maps, subject to the following conditions:

- a The arrangements regarding route, timing and other issues that are set out in the application documents are adhered to,
- b All provisions of Road Transport Legislation are complied with,
- c Approval pursuant to section 115 of the Road Transport Act, 2013 being given by the Commissioner of Police or his delegated officer.
- d Any direction given by a member of the NSW Police that is pursuant to Road Transport Legislation or Occupational Health and Safety Legislation is to be promptly complied with,
- e Any reasonable direction that is given by an Officer of Wagga Wagga City Council is to be promptly complied with,
- f A copy of a Certificate of Currency of a public liability insurance policy, that notes Wagga Wagga City Council, Coolamon Shire Council, Junee Shire Council and the NSW Roads and Maritime Services as interested parties, to the minimum value of \$20 million, to be produced to Wagga Wagga City Council not later than 1 November 2016.
- g Authorised Traffic Control Plans to be implemented, monitored and removed by a person who holds the appropriate level of "Traffic Control at Worksites" certification,
- h Racing should not commence of should immediately cease in the event that sight distance, due to weather or other conditions, does not render an adult person wearing dark clothing clearly visible at a distance of 200 metres.
- The race is to be run in accordance with the rules of the appropriate governing body for this type of event,
- j Failure to comply with any of these conditions will immediately void approval for the event.

CARRIED

RP-6 FUSION16 EVENT

Recommendation

That Traffic Committee note that the following matter was distributed to members on 1 September 2016 with members responding in favour of the event.

That Traffic Committee endorse the conduct of a multicultural street festival, FUSION16 to be held in Baylis Street Wagga Wagga, between the north side of Wollundry Lagoon and the north side of Morrow Street, on Saturday 15 October 2016 subject to the following conditions:

a A certified and approved Traffic Control plan that prevents ordinary traffic access to the area is to be implemented and maintained by appropriately authorised personnel prior to and throughout the event.

- b There is to be no vehicular movement in the nominated areas during the event.
- c Organisers and event participants obey all Police directions.
- d Organisers and event participants obey any reasonable direction that is made by a Wagga Wagga City Council Officer in respect of the management of the road network.
- e No event participant is to occupy a position on a road that is outside of the closed area.
- f The Event Organiser is to notify emergency services and public transport providers of the road closure.
- g Failure to comply with any condition immediately voids approval for the event and normal traffic regulation and restriction will apply from that time.

CARRIED

RP-7 RED HILL ROAD - ACCESS FOR ARTICULATED VEHICLES

Recommendation

That Traffic Committee endorse

- a The issue by Council Officers of permits that allow vehicles:
 - i that are greater than 15 metres in length but not greater than 19 metres in length, and
 - ii not heavier than concessional mass limits, and
 - iii registered to owners who reside within the boundaries of the City of Wagga Wagga Local Government Area

to travel on the section of Red Hill Road between the intersection with the Olympic Highway and the intersection with Glenfield Road.

- b The removal of all R9-223 plates that are currently attached to signs on Red Hill Road, the Olympic Highway, Glenfield Road and Holbrook Road with the words 'VEHICLES OVER 15m' and that are associated with travel on Red Hill Road.
- c Request permission from Roads and Maritime Services to replace the signs that are mentioned at point 'b' with R9-229 signs with the words 'NO VEHICLES OVER 15m / AUTHORISED VEHICLES EXCEPTED / City of Wagga Wagga'
- d Review the effectiveness of the strategy in not longer than 12 months with consideration given to accelerated deterioration of the Red Hill Road asset and also to the number and nature of any complaints of excessive noise that is generated by heavy vehicle use.

CARRIED

RP-8 SHAW STREET - PETITION TO CLOSE THE INTERSECTION WITH DOCKER STREET

Recommendation

That Traffic Committee endorse

- a The retention of the Shaw Street connection with Docker Street as a ONE-WAY, south to north route between the two streets.
- b The installation of a speed reduction device at the northern end of the ONE-WAY connection between Shaw Street and Docker Street with the aim of creating a threshold treatment.
- The installation of an 'a' size W5-10 diagrammatical hump sign on the western side of the ONE-WAY connection between Shaw Street and Docker Street, facing north bound traffic at the mid-point on the narrow section length.
- d The resolution by Council of the ownership issue relating to land on which part of the narrow ONE-WAY length of road has been constructed.
- e Monitoring pedestrian access in the area to ensure that any speed reduction device does not become a de-facto pedestrian crossing.

CARRIED

RP-9 BECKWITH STREET PARKING ARRANGEMENTS NORTH OF KINCAID STREET

Recommendation

That Traffic Committee endorse

- a The removal of the existing parking restriction zones on both sides of Beckwith Street immediately north of the intersection with Kincaid Street
- b The removal of lengths of 45° angle parking on both sides of Beckwith Street immediately north of the zones that are mentioned at point 'a'
- c Install 10 metres of NO STOPPING ZONE using standard R5-400 series signs on both sides of Beckwith Street immediately north of the intersection with Kincaid Street as per the diagram that is contained in the following report.
- d Install non-standard parking signs with the words 'PARALLEL PARKING' on the northern side of the NO STOPPING zones that are mentioned at point 'c'.
- e Install repeater 'PARALLEL PARKING' signs as indicated in the diagram that is contained in the following report.

CARRIED

RP-10 ELIZABETH AVENUE - PARKING RESTRICIONS AT RURAL FIRE SERVICE STATION

Recommendation

That Traffic Committee endorse the installation of a length of NO STOPPING zone, using standard R5-400 signs, across and five metres on either side of the driveway to the Forest Hill Rural Fire Service Station at 82 Elizabeth Avenue Forest Hill.

CARRIED

RP-11 MORGAN STREET PARKING RESTRICTIONS AT DRIVEWAY CONNECTIONS TO SERVICE ROAD

Recommendation

That Traffic Committee endorse the installation of two lengths of NO STOPPING zone, using standard R5-400 signs, on the northern side of Morgan Street, commencing 10 metres on the approach side of both driveways to properties at 185 to 199 Morgan Street and ending six metres on the departure side of each driveway.

CARRIED

RP-12 LAKE ALBERT ROAD AT INTERSECTION WITH PLUMPTON ROAD - INTRODUCTION OF STOP SIGN CONTROL

Recommendation

- a In the short term, the installation of a STOP sign control, using duplicated 'B' size R1-1 STOP signs and associated STOP line, in Lake Albert Road on the north bound leg at the intersection with Plumpton Road.
- b An extension of the median nose forward into the intersection to shield right turning vehicles from traffic that may travel straight on in the left turn lane at the intersection.

RP-13 VINCENT ROAD - INSTALLATION OF A STOP SIGN CONTROL AT THE INTERSECTION WITH KOORINGAL ROAD

Recommendation

That Traffic Committee endorse the installation of a STOP sign control, using duplicated 'B' size R1-1 STOP signs and associated STOP line, in Vincent Road facing west bound traffic at the intersection with Kooringal Road.

CARRIED

RP-14 VINCENT ROAD - ADVISORY SPEED SIGNS AT CURVE

Recommendation

That Traffic Committee endorse the installation of combined 'B' size W1-3 'curve warning' signs and W8-2 'advisory speed' signs, with the additional numerals '45' at a distance of 80 metres on the approach to both sides of the 90° angle bend in Vincent Road that is located about 500 metres east of the intersection with Kooringal Road.

CARRIED

QUESTIONS WITH NOTICE

No Questions With Notice were received.

GENERAL BUSINESS

GB1 Police asked for an investigation of traffic control options for the intersection of Brunskill, Lake Albert and Main Street.

The Traffic Committee rose at 10:20 am.